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May 18, 2018

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Document Control Desk
Washington, D.C. 20555-0001

Subject: Reply to a Notice of Violation (EA-17-182)

Dear Mr. Morris:

The purpose of this letter is to provide a written response to the notice of violation regarding an inspection
conducted June 27-30 2017. For reference, numbers included in the violation are Docket: 3-13426,
License: 50-17838-01, EA-17-182. The notice of violation detailed 3 violations summarized below.

A. Written Directives were not being signed and dated by an Authorized User prior to the
administration of therapeutic doses of radiation from byproduct material. This occurred from
January 1, 2015 to June 27, 2017 with the Y-90 treatments occurring inside of the Radiology
Department.

B. Written procedures for the delivery and procedures for use of Y-90 microspheres were not
followed. This occurred from January 1, 2015 to June 27, 2017. Specifically the procedure stated
that a medical physicist was to review the written directive and calculation prior to ordering. The
review failed to be performed.

C. The NRC license guidance on Y-90 Microsphere Brachytherapy requires that all staff involved
with the procedure have training commiserate with their duties and responsibilities. Staff did not
have the required training. Specifically the nuclear medicine technician that was ordering the
sources was not trained in the ordering, measuring, and preparation process for Y-90
microspheres. This occurred from October 28, 2015 to June 27, 2017.

Full details of the specific regulations can be found in the notice of violation, 10CFR35.40(a),
10CFR35.41(a), and Yittrium-90 Microsphere Brachytherapy Sources and Devices TheraSphere
and SIR-Sphere License Guidance February 12, 2016 Rev §.

Specific elements required to be examined by the notice of violation and 10CFR2.201 are summarized
below.

1. Reason for violation

A. Wiritten directives were being signed by the AU after completion of the procedure. The
Written Directive spreadsheet provided from the manufacture included items that needed to
be filled out after the implant. There was also a section for corrected written directive for
stasis or other medical reasons the implanted activity had to be changed. The second
signature block for corrected written directive was being signed after the implant and not the
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13. Are resources adequate to perform, and maintain control over, the licensed activities? Has
the radiation safety officer been provided sufficient time and resources to perform his or her
oversight duties?

The RSO has been provided enough resources. An external consultant has been contracted
to provide specialized expertise and assistance with various projects. An effort was
undertaken to streamline the RSO duties. All survey instruments are no longer calibrated by
the RSO, but sent to an outside vendor. We are in the process of disposing of approximately
50 legacy sources. This will reduce the inventory and swipe testing burden on the RSO.
Some of the duties formerly assigned to the assistant RSO were incorporated into the
manager of nuclear medicine. Through training provided by the RSO, It has been
emphasized to staff that monitoring of personnel for daily safe work practices is everyone’s
responsibility. Syntrac is used to track radioactive material. The software has been installed
on the RSO'’s computer allowing him to electronically monitor all radioactive material in the
hospital from his desk.

14. Have work hours affected the employees' ability to safely perform the job?
Fatigue from overwork has not impacted staff’s ability to safely perform their jobs.

15. Should organizationai changes be made (e.g., changing the reporting relationship of the
radiation safety officer to provide increased independence)?

The RSO reports to a quarterly environment of care meeting with senior level management.

16. Are management and the RSO adequately involved in oversight and implementation of the
licensed activities? Do supervisors adequately observe new employees and difficult, unique,
or new operations?

The RSO acting as the AMP has direct involvement with the use of radioactive materials in
Radiation Oncology and regular meetings with staff in Radiology. Supervisors adequately
observe new staff and verify credentials prior to work.

17. Has management established a work environment that encourages employees to raise safety
and compliance concems?

The hospital has a web based program through with staff can anonymously submit concerns.

18. Has management placed a premium on production over compliance and safety? Does
management demonstrate a commitment to compliance and safety?

With this incident more resources have been allocated to radiation safety. Management had
not been made aware of the problems that had been created by cutting staff.

19. Has management communicated its expectations for safety and compliance?
Safety compliance has been included in required annual training for all staff. A short portion

of this includes radiation safety for non-radiation workers. For radiation workers, a more
detailed online training class is required annually. The COO is a member of the RSC.
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